
BCP Council Civic Centre, Bourne Avenue, Bournemouth BH2 6DY 

 

 
 

 

Notice of Russell Cotes Art Gallery and Museum 
Management Committee 
 

Date: Monday, 30 January 2023 at 2.00 pm 

Venue: Committee Room, First Floor, BCP Civic Centre Annex, St Stephen's 
Rd, Bournemouth BH2 6LL 

 

Membership: 

Chairman: 

Stuart Bartholomew 

Vice Chairman: 

Cllr L Williams 

Cllr B Dunlop 
Cllr M Iyengar 
 

Mr A Frost 
Mr G Irvine 
 

Ms F Winrow 
Sir George Meyrick Baronet 
 

 

All Members of the Russell Cotes Art Gallery and Museum Management Committee are 
summoned to attend this meeting to consider the items of business set out on the agenda 
below. 

 
The press and public are welcome to view the live stream of this meeting at the following 

link: 
 
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5565 

 
If you would like any further information on the items to be considered at the meeting please 

contact: Nicky Hooley or email democratic.services@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 
 
Press enquiries should be directed to the Press Office: Tel: 01202 454668 or 

email press.office@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 
  

This notice and all the papers mentioned within it are available at democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

 

A
v
a
ila

b
le

 o
n
lin

e
 a

n
d
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 M

o
d
.g

o
v
 a

p
p
 

 

 

 

 

 

GRAHAM FARRANT 

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

 

 

20 January 2023 

 



 

 susan.zeiss@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

 



 

 

AGENDA 
Items to be considered while the meeting is open to the public 

1.   Apologies  

 To receive any apologies for absence from Councillors. 

 

 

2.   Declarations of Interests  

 Councillors are requested to declare any interests on items included in this 
agenda. Please refer to the workflow on the preceding page for guidance. 

Declarations received will be reported at the meeting. 
 

 

3.   Confirmation of Minutes 5 - 8 

 To confirm and sign as a correct record the minutes of the Meeting held on 

24 October 2022.   
 

 

4.   Financial Statements 2021/22 9 - 12 

 It is a statutory requirement to agree the annual financial statements for the 
Russell-Cotes Art Gallery and Museum and submit them to the Charity 

Commission by 31 January each year. The Committee are asked to review 
and agree the financial statements and the Letter of Representation prior to 

them being signed off by the Leader and Portfolio Holder for Finance and 
Transformation. 
 

 

5.   Update on Progress on the Museum's Forward Plan (2020 - 2024) 13 - 20 

 The Russell-Cotes Art Gallery and Museum Forward Plan (2020-2024) 
outlines the museum’s strategic objectives as required by Arts Council 
England (ACE) Museum Accreditation. 

This Update gives Management Committee Members an understanding of 
progress to date against these objectives and the planned actions to come.  

The Museum has made good progress in some areas such as: 

 driving investment to the conservation of the fabric of the building 
(MEND)   

 conservation of items in the collection;  

 improvements to the room displays and interpretation 

 development of popular programming and events. 

 more focussed marketing 

However, the review of governance has proven to be complex and 
challenging. The Update enables Management Committee to review 

progress and make suggestions for future activities and actions. 
 

 

 
No other items of business can be considered unless the Chairman decides the matter is urgent for reasons that 
must be specified and recorded in the Minutes.  

 



This page is intentionally left blank



RUSSELL COTES ART GALLERY AND MUSEUM MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

 
MONDAY, 24TH OCTOBER, 2022 

 
 

Present:  
 

Stuart Bartholomew in the Chair 

 Councillors Cllr L Williams (Vice-Chairman), 
Cllr B Dunlop, Cllr M Iyengar, Mr A Frost and Mr G 
Irvine 

 
Apologies:  
 

Ms F Winrow and Sir George Meyrick Baronet 

 
 
 

29 Apologies  

 
Apologies for absence had been received from Sir George Meyrick and Fiona Winrow.   
 

30 Declarations of Interests  

 
Councillor Lawrence advised that he was a member of Arts Council, England. 
 

31 Confirmation of Minutes  

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 4 May 2022 were agreed as a true and correct record. 
Voting: unanimous 
 

32 Russell-Cotes Art Gallery & Museum Update Report  

 

The Museum Manager presented a report, a copy of which had been circulated to 
each Member and a copy of which appears as Appendix 'A' to these Minutes in the 

Minute Book. 

This report provided an update on the activities of the Russell-Cotes Art Gallery & 

Museum from 1 April – 31 September 2022. 

It was advised that visitor numbers and performance had returned to pre-Covid levels 
with strong income levels in admissions, the shop and café.   

The Museum had embarked on the MEND programme to replace Mechanical and 
Engineering services and to refurbish the Conservatory.  Additional applications had 

been made for grant funding to support further work on the fabric of the building.  

In the Centenary year, there had been a focus on improved programming with 
children’s activity days and late night openings encouraging audiences to return.  The 

Sixpence days brought in very significant numbers and enabled access for all. 

A very strong exhibition programme had been developed for the next year with ‘Telling 

Tales: the Story of Victorian Narrative Art’ in partnership with Southampton City Art 
Gallery opening in October 2022. An exhibition on Bournemouth born, equestrian 
artist Lucy Kemp-Welch was being developed in association with the National Horse 

Racing Museum for Spring 2023. 

Schools, universities and language schools had returned for formal learning sessions 

as well as group visits. 

During recent heavy rain, water was coming in through seven separate locations in the 
building.  This is further aggravated by the fact that little building maintenance had 

5

Agenda Item 3



Monday, 24th October, 2022  

been done recently.  The main entrance has to be closed during such times, as water 

comes down the main stairway.  Visitors during such times are forced to either use the 
lift or the metal staircase.  This increases stress on staffing as well. 

The Committee was shown a presentation, detailing finances, which would be 

circulated after the meeting. 

It was advised that income was strong, and salaries were on track.  Regarding 

overheads, the main challenges were for resources, with monthly invoices totalling 
£9000 for utilities.  Whilst efforts were being made to reduce utility costs, essential 
humidity maintenance costs, rather than heating, could not be avoided.  Therefore, 

this was an issue during the hot summer.   

In response to a question of identifying potential risks, if the necessary building 

maintenance was not completed in the next couple of years, it was advised that it may 
be unsafe to open the building to the public and the collection would be at significant 
risk.   

It was suggested that the membership should meet to produce an up-to-date risk 
register, and subsequent action plan.     

It was highlighted that currently, the Council’s budget had dictated a moratorium on 
spend.  Although BCP Council was in a better financial position than most local 
authorities, there would need to be further discussions before any spending was 

allocated.   

In response to a question about the success of this summer’s takings, it was explained 

that it was the result of a mixture of things, good visitor incentives, good weather and 
marketing.  £30k had been taken in merchandise sales for the summer exhibition 
alone.  There had been overseas and local visitors.   

The Committee recognised and gave their thanks for the very successful past six 
months and increase in income.   

RESOLVED that the Management Committee accepted the Russell-Cotes Art 
Gallery and Museum review report for the period 1 April – 31 September 2022 
and agreed the actions suggested in the report. 

Voting: Unanimous 

 
33 Acquisitions, Loans and Disposals Report  

 
The Museum Manager presented a report, a copy of which had been circulated to each 
Member and a copy of which appears as Appendix 'B' to these Minutes in the Minute Book. 

The Committee were asked to note the new acquisitions to the Collection (the material owned 
and held in trust by the Russell-Cotes Art Gallery & Museum charity in accordance with its 
charitable objectives) and the loan of material to other institutions (i.e. public art galleries and 
museums and to approve the disposal of items in the collection, which did not meet the 
Museum’s Core Offer, according to the Museums Association Code of Ethics. 

In response to a question as to whether the Art Gallery and Museum received testimonials 
from museums who had borrowed from the Russell-Cotes collection, it was explained that 
written thanks were received and shared on social media.  It was advised that there should be 
information, detailing the loanee, in place of loaned items, in the museum.    

RESOLVED that the Management Committee noted and approved: 

(a) The acquisitions; 

(b) The loans; and 

(c) The disposals  

6



Monday, 24th October, 2022  

as outlined in the Acquisitions, Loans and Disposals Report. 

Voting: Unanimous 

 
34 Russell-Cotes Work Programme October 2022  

 
The Museum Manager presented a report, a copy of which had been circulated to each 
Member and a copy of which appears as Appendix 'C' to these Minutes in the Minute Book. 

It was RESOLVED that the Russell-Cotes Work Programme be noted. 

Voting: Nem. Con 

 
35 Exclusion of Press and Public  

 
RESOLVED that under Section 100 (A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 in 
Part I of Schedule 12A of the Act and that the public interest in withholding the 
information outweighs such interest in disclosing the information. 

 
36 Progress on the Externalization of the Russell-Cotes Art Gallery and Museum  

 
Exempt Report as defined in Paragraph 3 in Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972. 

The Museum Manager presented a report, a copy of which had been circulated to each 
Member and a copy of which appears as Appendix 'D' to these Minutes in the Minute Book. 

The Russell-Cotes Management Committee had been reviewing the governance 
arrangements of the Russell-Cotes since 2018, to address the compromised arrangements in 
place which materially impact on the charity’s ability to deliver its objectives. 

The Russell-Cotes now had clarity on the governance changes needed and a clear business 
plan which set out a 10-year strategy.  The Charity Commission agreed that the changes were 
in the best interests of the Russell-Cotes and invited BCP Council as sole trustee, to apply to 
them for a parliamentary scheme to change the Sole Trustee. 

A draft Cabinet/Council Report and Business Plan have been drafted for formal submission to 
BCP Council.  These outline the case for change, seek agreement to implement the 
governance changes required and make the request for financial support to the new sole 
trustee.  Input from Management Committee members was sought to ensure that they agreed 
with the argument and proposals presented, they supported the level of financial request to be 
made,  and they endorsed the decision to proceed. 

It was explained that further consultation may need to be carried out, to help secure NHLF 
funding and to meet the requirements of the Charity Commission.   

The Monitoring Officer had signed-off this report from a legal point of view.  The essential 
financial information would be needed before the report could be signed off by Finance, before 
then going to Cabinet for consideration.   

It was highlighted that the timetable of the whole process may be influenced by how quickly it 
could be agreed by the Charity Commission. 

It was discussed that any consultation must be conducted across as many organisations as 
possible, across Bournemouth. 

It was discussed and agreed that the application to the charity commission needed to be 
submitted by Spring 2023.  If this deadline was not achieved, it would be difficult to judge what 
may be the outcome post May 2023.   

7



Monday, 24th October, 2022  

It was suggested that a working group of the Committee be formed to work with the Museum 
Manager to update the risk register.  The risk register would need to include actions in the 
active tense, with timings and who would be the lead.   

RESOLVED that: 

The Management Committee reviewed: 

a) the draft Cabinet/Council report on externalization of the Russell-Cotes;  

b) the draft 10-year Financial Model;  

c) provide any comments, changes and advice on the contents, financial 
request and strategy outlined; and 

d) The Management Committee agreed to progress the revised Report and 
Financial Model and present them to Cabinet and Council in due course. 

Voting: Unanimous 

 
 
 
Duration of the meeting: 2.00 - 3.50 pm  

 
 

Chairman at the meeting on 
Monday, 24 October 2022 

8



RUSSELL COTES ART GALLERY AND 
MUSEUM MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

 

Report subject  Financial Statements 2021/22 

Meeting date  30 January 2023 

Status  Public Report 

Executive summary  It is a statutory requirement to agree the annual financial 
statements for the Russell-Cotes Art Gallery and Museum and 
submit them to the Charity Commission by 31 January each year. 
The Committee are asked to review and agree the financial 
statements and the Letter of Representation prior to them being 
signed off by the Leader and Portfolio Holder for Finance and 
Transformation. 

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that:  

 The Committee agree the financial statements and the Letter of 
Representation for the financial year 2021/22. 

Reason for 
recommendations 

To allow the financial statements for the Russell-Cotes Art Gallery 
and Museum for 2021/22 to be approved and submitted by the 
deadline of 31 January 2023. 

  

9

Agenda Item 4



Portfolio Holder(s):  Cllr Drew Mellor – Portfolio Holder for Finance and Transformation 

Corporate Director  Graham Farrant – Chief Executive 

Report Authors Stephen White – Company Accountant 

Wards  Not applicable  

Classification  For Decision 
Ti t l e:   

Background 

1. As sole trustee BCP Council is required to approve the 2021/22 Russell-Cotes Art  
Gallery and Museum financial statements before they are submitted to the Charity 
Commission by the 31 January 2023. The Russell-Cotes Art Gallery and Museum 
Management Committee is asked to review and agree the financial statements and 
the Letter of Representation prior to the Leader and Portfolio Holder for Finance and 
Transformation signing them off. 

Options Appraisal 

2. There are no options as it is a statutory requirement to submit appropriately  
approved annual financial statements to the Charity Commission within the required 
deadline. 

Summary of financial implications 

3. There are no financial implications as a result of this report. 

Summary of legal implications 

4. The Council’s executive exercises the functions as Trustee for the operations and 
management of the Russell-Cotes Art Gallery & Museum. 

5. The annual financial statements for the period ending 31 March 2022 are required 
by the Charity Commission to be filed by 31 January 2023 in accordance with The  
Charities (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008. 

Summary of human resources implications 

6. There are no human resource implications as a result of this report. 

Summary of sustainability impact 

7. There are no sustainability implications as a result of this report. 

Summary of public health implications 

8. There are no public health implications as a result of this report. 

Summary of equality implications 

9. The approval of financial statements is not a policy or service change and therefore  
       there are no equality impacts. For this reason and equality impact assessment has  

10



       not been completed. 

Summary of risk assessment 

10. There are no financial risks associated with this decision. There could be  
reputational damage in missing the submission deadline. 

Background papers 

Draft financial statements issued by email to the Management Committee by Stephen 
White on 4 November 2022.  

Appendices   

Appendix 1 - Final financial statements 2021/22 to follow – expected date of publication 
25 January 2023. 

Appendix 2 - Bridging document to compare final with draft financial statements 

highlighting material amendments – expected date of publication 25 January 2023. 

Appendix 3 – Letter of Representation 2021/22 to follow - expected date of publication 

25 January 2023. 

 

11



This page is intentionally left blank

12



RUSSELL COTES ART GALLERY AND 
MUSEUM MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

 

Report subject  Update on Progress on the Museum's Forward Plan (2020 - 
2024) 

Meeting date  30 January 2023 

Status  Public Report   

Executive summary  The Russell-Cotes Art Gallery and Museum Forward Plan (2020-
2024) outlines the museum’s strategic objectives as required by 
Arts Council England (ACE) Museum Accreditation. 

This Update gives Management Committee Members an 
understanding of progress to date against these objectives and the 
planned actions to come.  The Museum has made good progress in 
some areas such as: 

 driving investment to the conservation of the fabric of the 
building (MEND)   

 conservation of items in the collection;  

 improvements to the room displays and interpretation 

 development of popular programming and events. 

 more focussed marketing 

However, the review of governance has proven to be complex and 
challenging. The Update enables Management Committee to 
review progress and make suggestions for future activities and 
actions. 

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that:  

 The Management Committee  

 note the progress made against the strategic objectives 
identified in the Forward Plan 

 review the future activity planned 

 recommend any further actions and activities to be 
undertaken to achieve them. 

Reason for 
recommendations 

The Forward Plan was agreed in January 2020 to establish the 
formal objectives of the Museum over the subsequent 5 years as 
required by ACE Museum Accreditation. It is the responsibility of 

13

Agenda Item 5



the Trustee to provide oversight of the Museum and its activities. 

Portfolio Holder(s):  Councillor Beverley Dunlop, Portfolio Holder for Tourism, Culture 
and Vibrant Places 

Corporate Director  Jess Gibbon, Chief Operations Officer 

Report Authors Sarah Newman, Museum Manager 

Michael Spender, Head of Culture 

Chris Saunders, Director Destination and Culture 

Wards  Not applicable  

Classification  For Update  
Ti t l e:   

Background 

1. ACE Museum Accreditation requires that every museum produces a 5 year Forward 
Plan to identify its strategic objectives.  An accompanying Action Plan is a working 
document outlining the steps to their achievement. A 2 year budget is normally 
included. 

2. The Russell-Cotes Forward Plan (2020 -2024) was agreed by the Management 
Committee in January 2020 at a time of uncertainty around governance change and 
available budget and was therefore limited in scope.   

Progress Made in the Forward Plan 

3. Although uncertainty on governance and budget has persisted, the objectives laid 
out in the Forward Plan have proved useful in providing clear priorities to staff at a 
time of ongoing uncertainty and major challenge. 

4. Appendix 1 provides a summary of the 7 agreed objectives, recent progress and the 
action plan for the next year. 

5. With the exception of governance change, which has proven to be slow and 
complex to advance, good progress has been made in most areas, notably 

a.  improvements to the fabric of the building (roof works and MEND project) 

b. conservation of specific collection items,  

c. investment in new displays (ACE and DCMS/Wolfson funded); 

d. the development of varied and popular programming and events 

e. increased income generation 

f. more focussed and cost-effective marketing 

6. In 2020, it was anticipated that a comprehensive review would take place if the 
Museum moved to full Trust status and a new Forward Plan would be agreed. 

Summary of Financial Implications 

14



7. The outlined future activities are based on a stand-still budget (to be agreed) 

Summary of Legal Implications. 

8.    N/A 

Summary of Human Resources Implications 

9.     N/A 

Summary of sustainability impact 

10. N/A 

Summary of public health implications 

11. N/A 

Summary of equality implications 

12. N/A 

Summary of risk assessment 

13. N/A 

Background papers 

Russell-Cotes Art Gallery & Museum Forward Plan (2020-2024) 

Appendices   

Appendix 1 – Forward Plan 2020 – 2024, Update on Progress Jan 2023  

15



This page is intentionally left blank

16



 

Forward Plan 2020 - 2024 

Update on Progress January 2023 

key  

 Achieved 

 On track 

 Not started 

 

1. Make the Russell-Cotes truly world-class by safeguarding, conserving 

and investing in its collections, buildings, interiors and gardens 
 

Recent Achievements 

 Improvements to Displays in Mikado, Yellow and Red Room (2021) 

 All policies and plans required for accreditation updated and approved by 

Management Committee (2022)  

 Conservation of Queen Victoria’s chairs, Napoleon’s Table, ‘a Tempting Bait’, 

‘Emperor Barbarosa’ (2022)  

 Replacement of carpets in Drawing and Green Room (2022)  

 Sacrificial Persian Rug in Dining Room to Protect Floor (2022)  
 

Action Plan  

Action Target 
date 

Deliver MEND Project to restore conservatory and replace plant  
 

Jan 2024 

Complete Roof works  
 

Dec 2022 

Develop and implement  ‘Strategy for redisplay and reinterpretation’ to 
address decolonisation and drive improvements 
 

Dec 2023 

Continue disposals 
 

MC dates 

Study Centre – support feasibility study for potential new site ensuring 
adequate security, environmental controls and access 

unknown 

Identify next phase of capital improvements  
  

Summer 
2023 

 

 

 

2. Improve Governance to give strategic direction and financial 

transparency 
 

Recent Achievements  

 Clarity from Charity Commission on Legal Mechanism for change – Order of State  

17



 Invitation from Charity Commission to BCP Council to apply for governance change  

Action Plan 

Application submitted for financial support from NHLF  
 

Dec 2022 

Formal Agreement from BCP Council  
 

Jan 2023 

Result of NHLF application known 
 

Feb 2023 

Establish Steering Group for Externalisation consisting of Management 
Committee members  - Councillors and non-Councillors and BCP Officers  

Feb 2023 

Procure legal advice on new governance structure Feb/March 
2023 

BCP Application to Charity Commission for Governance Change  
 

March/April 
2023 

Creation of new Trustee 
 

April 2023 

Recruitment of new Board 
 

Summer 
2023 

Negotiate financial settlement with BCP Council 
 

Summer 
2023 

Governance Change approvals – Charity Commission/Order of State 
 

April 2024 

Transition arrangements for new Trustee 
 

April 2024 

3. Develop and communicate a clear vision of our purpose and offer to 

inspire existing and new visitors and supporters 
 

Recent Achievements  

 Permanent Marketing and Development Officer on team  

 Marketing Strategy commissioned from Blue Sail (2020) and being implemented  

Action Plan 

Recruit Maternity Cover  
 

Dec 2022 

Implement Strategy – move to digital, market focus, partnership working 
 

ongoing 

Set and monitor targets   
 

Jan 2023 

 

 

 

4. Bring the Museum to life with improved displays, interpretation, 

authentic experiences and creative programming to inspire new and 

diverse audiences 
 

18



Achievements 2022 

 Successful exhibition programme restarted – The Lost Words, Telling Tales etc 

 Seasonal programming embedded  

 Successful Centenary programme delivered – Sixpence days, Lates  

 Events programming reviewed to fit capacity  

 Chinamania – Ceramics booklet printed  

 

Action Plan 

Establish focus groups on Visitor experience, access, Diversity 
 

Feb 2023 

Exhibitions Committee with external advisers to establish 5 year schedule 
 

Feb 2023 

Deliver engagement programme following review – Lates, tours, etc 
 

Dec 2023 

Deliver Lucy Kemp-Welch exhibition with National Horseracing Museum 
 

March 2023 

Deliver community-led African Sculpture exhibition 
 

Jan 2023 

Deliver co-curation and community led events/exhibition targets 
 

Dec 2023 

Print ‘Passport to Japan’ booklet 
 

Feb 2023 

 

5. Improve our commercial and fundraising operations, utilizing digital 

technology to forge a sustainable future 
 

Achievements 2022 

 Visitor numbers at pre-Covid levels 

 Price increase implemented.  

 Direct and secondary income up by 10% on pre-covid levels  

 Good financial reporting shared with the team and regular monitoring  

 Outdoor terrace operational  

 Popup shop generated target £30,000  

 Cash reintroduced and cash handling systems in place  

Action Plan  

Introduce direct debits for Friends and Annual Ticket holders 
 

March 2023 

Develop new fundraising strategy 
 

March 2023 

Revise targets for income and visitors 
 

April 2023 

Implement small- scale fundraising campaign directed at Friends 
 

March 2023 

Review data collected via  SWVI to improve audience understanding and 
embed understanding in decision making 
 

April 2023 

19



Build on financial success of ‘The Lost Words’ merchandise with Lucy 
Kemp-Welch exhibition merch and introduce Christmas stock 

Dec 2023 

Consider application for a Project Grant from ACE for grant to support 
strategic objectives 

Feb 2023 

 

 

6. Develop partnerships regionally and nationally to raise our profile, the 

quality of our work and our contribution to the local cultural offer 
 

Recent Achievements   

 Exhibition partnerships with Southampton City Art Gallery and National Horseracing 

Museum  

 Publications with external curators – Chinamania, Passport to Japan  

 Restarted collaborations with AUB, BU and West Dean College  

Action Plan 2023 

Develop relationships with education providers eg AUB through MOI 
 

March 2023 

Develop cultural and tourism partnership strategy to drive profile, visitors 
and fundraising 
 

Summer  
2023 

 

 

  

7. Develop the skills of volunteers, staff and Trustees 
 

Recent Achievements 

 Ongoing planning and implementation of 6 monthly training sessions for staff and 

volunteers well established and recorded  

 Policies and procedures cascaded  
 

 

Action Plan  

Develop Volunteer skills to deliver further sessions for visitors – eg Slow 
Art, tours etc  
 

June 2023 

Identify opportunities for volunteer research and curator talks for staff and 
volunteers  
 

May 2023 

Identify opportunities for staff and volunteer development through 
partnership working with the National Horse Racing Museum (Art Fund 
supported)   
 

Oct 2023 

Full revision of policies, risk assessments, all-staff training and scenario 
practice on emergency plan, salvage operations, security, energy 
outages and business continuity 

July 2023 

 

 

20


	Agenda
	3 Confirmation of Minutes
	4 Financial Statements 2021/22
	5 Update on Progress on the Museum's Forward Plan (2020 - 2024)
	Appendix 1 for Review of Museum's Forward Plan 2020 - 2024


